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Full Year Results for the year ended 31 December 2023

Successful strategy drives strong performance for 2023
Adjusted EBITDA Profitability in Q4 2023 underpins expected UK profitability for FY 2024
Proposed US expansion marks next phase of corporate journey

PensionBee Group plc (‘PensionBee’ or the 'Conpany'), a leading online pension provider, today announces its audited full year
results for the year ended 31 Decenrber 2023.

Highlights

. PensionBee's online pension offering continued to make retirement planning for its customers straightforward and
enjoyable, serving approximeately 230,000 Invested Custorrers by the end of 2023, aimming to make them Pension
Confident.

. Since the Corrpany's Initial Public Offering in 2021, it has more than tripled its Assets under Administration to
£4.4bn and has quadrupled its Revenue to £23.8m In line with the commitrent at listing, PensionBee achieved
ongoing Adjusted EBITDA profitability in the fourth quarter of the year.

. Custorrer acquisition continued to be a core pillar of the strategy for 2023, with PensionBee maintaining its
household brand nane status, onboarding 46,000 new Invested CQustomrers at a declining Cost per Invested
Custorrer.

. The Conpany's scalable technology platformenabled it to serve customers with delightful new product initiatives
and contributed to its delivery of exceptional custorrer service, as denonstrated by over 10,000 Trustpilot
reviews supporting PensionBee's 'Excellent’ Score.

. Throughout the year the Corrpany experienced broader liquidity in its shares, joining the FTSE All-Share Index in
March 2023 and the FTSE4Good Index in Decenber 2023.

. In early 2024, the Conpany announced its proposed expansion to the United States of Amrerica, the world's
largest Defined Contribution pension market, in partnership with a US-based global financial institution. The
broadening of its geographic footprint will enable it to create a world leading conpany in the consunrer retirement
market.

Romi Savova, Chief Executive Officer of PensionBee, commented:

"We are pleased to report strong full year results for 2023, having reached £4.4 billion of Assets under Administration.
PensionBee has firmly established itself as a household brand name across the UK synonymous with easy and effective
pensions management for consumers, helping approximately 230,000 customers across the UK to become Pension
Confidert.

Having met our longstanding and ambitious goal of achieving Adjusted EBITDA profitability across the fourth quarter of 2023,
we are confident in our continued growth, underpinned by profitability. Our trusted brand, award-winning customer
proposition and distinctive combination of smart technology and dedicated customer service will see us continue to become
the provider of choice for our customers and grow our market share in the UK

As we fast approach our 10 year anniversary, we have announced our proposed expansion into the US, the world's largest
Defined Contribution pension market, where we see an enormous opportunity to assist many consumers in the US who also
struggle to prepare adequately for retirement as they navigate a complex and confusing pensions landscape. We believe that
the simplicity we bring through our customer proposition will resonate well with the US consurmer, and see this as an exciting
next step in our journey to help everyone save for a happy retirement.”

Financial Highlights

. Assets under Adninistration increased by 44% vear on vear to £4.4bn (2022: £3.0bn), driven predominantly by



strong net flows fromnew and existing custorrers and a supportive market.

. Correspondingly, Revenue increased by 35% to £23.8m (2022: £17.7m) owing to PensionBee's resilient
revenue margin.

. Invested Customer base increased by 25% year on year to 229,000 (2022: 183,000), driven by continued
brand awareness of 50% (2022: 52%). Custorrer Retention Rate >95% remained high and stable (2022:
>95%).

. Adjusted BBITDA* of £(8.2)m (2022: £(19.5)m) and Adjusted EBITDA Margin of (35)% (2022: (110)%),
reflecting investrrent in efficient marketing, operating leverage and emerging profitability.

. Rrofit/(Loss) before Tax of £(10.7)m (2022: £(22.4)m) and Basic Earnings per Share was (4.73)p (2022:
(9.97)p).

As at Year End

Dec-2021 Dec-2022 Dec-2023 2022-23 YoY
Revenue (£m) 12.8 17.7 23.8 35%
Cost Base (£m) (29.2) (37.2) (32.0) (14)%
Adjusted EBITDA (£m)* (16.4) (19.5) (8.2 58%
Adjusted EBITDA Margin (% of Revenue) (129)% (110)% (35)% +76ppt
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (£m) (25.0) (22.4) (10.7) 52%
Profit/(Loss) before Tax Margin (% of
Revenfje) ) gin (% (196)% (127)% (45)% +820pt
Basic Earnings per Share (11.86)p (9.97)p (4.73)p 53%

Non-Financial Highlights

As at Year End
Dec-2021 Dec-2022 Dec-2023 2022-23 YoY
AUA (Em) 2,587 3,025 4,350 44%
AUA Retention Rate (% of AUA) %% 97% %% | stable at >95%
Invested Customers (thousands) 117 183 229 25%
Custorrer Retention Rate (% of IC) 97% 97% %% | stable at >95%
within
Cost per Invested Custorrer (£) 246 248 241 threshold
Revenue Margin (% of AUA) 0.64% 0.63% 0.64% +1bp
As at Year End
Dec-2021 Dec-2022 Dec-2023 2022-23 YoY
Opening AUA (£m) 1,358 2,587 3,025 17%
Gross Inflows (£m) 1,099 1,060 1,174 11%
Gross Qutflows (£m) (145) (197) (318) 61%
Net Inflow's (£m) 955 863 857 -1%
Market Grow th and Cther (£m) 275 (424) 468 n/m
Closing AUA (£m) 2,587 3,025 4,350 44%

For definitions, see Managing our Performance section.

ppt - A ppt is a percentage point. A percentage point is the unit for the arithmetic difference of two percentages.

* PensionBee's Key Performance Indicators include an alterative perf ormance measure ('APM) which is Adjusted EBITDA. APV are not defined
by Intemational financial Reporting Standards (‘'IFRS') and should be considered together with the Group's IFRS measurements of performance.
PensionBee believes this APM assists in providing greater insight into the underlying performance of PensionBee and enhances comparability of
information between reporting periods.

Guidance and Outlook

The Board remeins confident in PensionBee's potential for continued growth and profitability, due to a conrbination of the
strength and stability of its existing customer base, together with its ability to attract new customers that generate growth in
recurring Revenue through its scalable technology platform

The Conrpany is pleased to reiterate the guidance for the UK, confirning that it will aim to deliver sustained, high Revenue
growth. While the Conpany has denonstrated significant growth to date, the Board remains of the view that the focus on the
mess market of pension savers will enable it to deliver substantial further growth as the Conpany ains to pursue a c.2%
market share of the £1.2 trillion transferable pensions market over the next 5-10 years. The Corrpany is aiming to onboard 1
nillion Invested Customers with pension pots of £20,000-£25,000, creating a Revenue anbition of ¢.£150min the long term

At the same time, given that the Conpany has invested in its brand and technology over many years, and achieved ongoing
Adjusted BBITDA profitability in the final quarter of 2023, it is poised to continue delivering increasingly profitable growth over
the mediumto long term The Conrpany's primary financial goal is to deliver Adjusted EBITDA profitability for the full year 2024,
measuring this across the year as opposed to over individual quarters. Looking ahead to the next few years after 2024, the
Corrpany expects to grow its marketing investment and invest in growth, whilst meintaining its focus on profitability as an
underpin with an anbition to achieve long-termAdjusted EBITDA Margins of over 50%.

The recently announced proposed US expansion in partnership with a large, US-based global financial institution will see the
US-based partner providing its expertise and substantial marketing funding to the US business. Correspondingly, PensionBee's
financial contribution will be financed from the existing resources of PensionBee Group plc, and as a result the US business
does not change the existing guidance in the UK

Current Trading

Trading in 2024 to date has seen positive momentum with the Conpany tracking well against its objectives, which are to
increase Net Inflow s in ahsoli te ternms and Net Inflow s ner £ of marketina snend as commared to 2023
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Analyst, Investor and Press Presentation

A copy of the 2023 Full Year Results announcenent and presentation will be made available post-market close on 13 March
2024 for dow nload at: pensionbee.comlinvestor-relations/results-and-reports. A recording of the presentation will follow .

There will be a webcast presentation hosted by Roni Savova (CEO) and Christoph J. Martin (CFO) for analysts, investors and
press on Wednesday 13 March at 5:00pm UK (GMT) / 1:00pmUS (EST).

Hease contact press@pensionbee.comif you would like to attend.

Alternatively you can register and access the webcast with the following links:
Webcast Link: WWebcast for video presentation
Conference Call Link: Conference call for Q8A

Investor Meet Company Presentation

Romi Savova and Christoph J. Martin will also provide a live presentation relating to the Full Year Results via Investor Meet
Conpany on 15 March 2024 at 2:00pm UK (GMT) / 10.00amUS (EST).

The presentation is open to all existing and potential shareholders. Questions can be subnitted pre-event via your Investor
Meet Conpany dashboard up until 2:00pm UK (GMT) / 10.00am US (EST) on 14 March 2024, or at any time during the live
presentation.

Investors can sign up to the Investor Meet Corrpany for free and add to meet RensionBee via:
investormeetcompany.com/pensionbee-group-plc/register.

Investors who already follow the Cormpany on the Investor Meet Corrpany platformwill autorretically be invited.
Enquiries

PensionBee
Becky OConnor
Laura Dunn-Sins
Steven Kennedy

press@pensionbee.com
+44 20 3557 8444
About PensionBee

PensionBee is a leading online pension provider, making pension managenent easy for its customers while they save for a
happy retiremment. PensionBee helps its customers combine their old pension pots, make flexible contributions, invest in line
with their goals and values and make withdraw als fromthe age of 55 (increasing to 57 in 2028). FensionBee offers a range of
investrment plans, including fossil fuel free options, fromsome of the world's largest asset managers.

Operating in the UK Defined Contribution market, w hich exceeds £1 trillion of pension assets, PensionBee has grow n rapidly
through its direct-to-consurrer merketing activities, creating a household brand name for the mass market.

The Conpany has £4.4bn in Assets Under Administration and 229,000 Invested Customers as at 31 Decerrber 2023.
PensionBee has consistently maintained a Custorrer Retention Rate in excess of 95% and an Excellent Trustpilot rating (from
nore than 10,000 custorrers), reflecting its commitrment to outstanding custorrer service.

PensionBee is admitted to trading on the Premium Segrrent of the London Stock Bxchange's Main Market (LONPBEE).
Forward Looking Statements

Staterrents that are not historical facts, including statements about FensionBee's or managenent's beliefs and expectations,
are forward-looking staterrents. The full year results contain forward-looking statements, which by their nature involve
substantial risks and uncertainties as they relate to events and depend on circunstances which will occur in the future and
actual results and developrents may differ meterially fromthose expressly stated or otherwise inplied by these statements.

These forward-looking statements are staterents regarding PensionBee's intentions, beliefs or current expectations
concerning, anong other things, its results of operations, financial condition, prospects, growth, strategies and the industry
and merkets within w hich it operates.

These forward-looking statements relate to the date of these full year results and PensionBee does not undertake any
obligation to publicly release any revisions to these forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the
date of the full year results.

Chief Executive Officer's Review

Dear fellow shareholder,

2023 was not only a year of transition, but also a year of transformation. We began the year with an uncertain econonric
backdrop. Interest rates were hitting highs not seen in decades and consuner sentiment was shaken. The war in Ukraine,
simmering geopolitical tensions and the cost of living crisis were taking their toll.

Nevertheless, PensionBee had a longstanding and ambitious goal of reaching ongoing nonthly Adjusted EBITDA profitability by
the end of 2023, which we ret.! We focused on the key elements of our strategy that together make us the pension provider
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our scalable technology platformand our purpose-built investment range. As a result, we are proud to have ended the year
with Assets under Administration of £4.4bn representing annual growth of 44% (2022: £3.0bn), Revenue of £23.8m
representing annual growth of 35% (2022: £17.7m) and having achieved Adjusted BBITDA profitability across the fourth
quarter of 2023.1

Qur strategy and £55mof investment in merketing since inception has seen us firmly established as a household brand namnre,
enabling us to start 2023 with a mejority of UK consumrers having already heard of PensionBee. Hstoric investrrents in high
profile advertising canpaigns in train stations, on tube panels and on taxis has enbedded PensionBee into the consciousness
of the consunrer. In 2023, we centred our brand awareness activities on the nost econorrical inpressions, achieved through
radio, television and sports sponsorship. Having done the hard work of teaching consumers about PensionBee and often
about pension consolidation and the general importance of saving for a happy retiremment, we aspired to keep PensionBee top
of mind. We conplemented our refined brand strategy with performance marketing led by our data insights, with strong
results: our brand awareness was stable at 50%2 and our 2023 currulative Cost Per Invested Qustorrer ('CPAIC) was £241
(2022: £248), continuing a dow nward trajectory through the achieverrent of an in-period CPC of £213 for 2023 (2022: £251) -
both well within our publicly communicated CPIC threshold of £200-250.1

While acquiring new customrers is crucial to our growth, serving them for decades to come and maintaining our Custorrer
Retention Rate of over 95% is crucial to our business. With this in mind, we continued to invest in our product experience. We
released in-product content for our custorrers, enabling themto enjoy customised articles based on their profiles and access
to our award-winning Pension Confident Podcast, packed with helpful financial tips. We invested in tooling to help our
custorrers plan for the future, including a tax relief calculator, a state pension calculator and an inflation calculator. For our at-
retirement customrers, we introduced functionality for regular in-app withdraw als and the functionality for custorers to take a
salary through retirement. We also launched our life insurance partnership with LifeSearch, taking a broader view of our
custorrers’ needs for retirement planning and helping them to protect themselves and their loved ones should the worst
happen. As a result, we maintained an inpressive average app store rating at 4.7 out of 5 (4.8 App Store rating and 4.5
Google Pay rating) (2022: 4.6) and a Customer Retention Rate of over 95% (2022: >95%).3

Key to managing in any econorric environment, but especially in the volatile one we have found ourselves in for the last few
years, is the provision of excellent customer support. At PensionBee we celebrated the arrival of the Financial Conduct
Authority's Consumer Duty, in the hope that it would raise standards across the board in the pensions sector, inproving
consumer trust and confidence in retirement savings. Our custorrer duty is firmly ermbedded in everything we do and
especially in our customer service, where we strive to be available to our customers and to offer them the information they
need, when they need it. We continued to maintain industry-leading call queue times of 23 seconds (2022: 115 seconds) and a
Trustpilot rating of 4.6x based on approxinately 10,000 reviews (2022: 4.6%).4 In 2023, we even took PensionBee on the
road around the UK; visiting custorrers in London, Brighton, Birmingham, Manchester and Glasgow .

In a year where achieving Adjusted EBITDA profitability was a primary goal, a focus on cost efficiency was of paramount
importance. In technology, the best way to maintain cost efficiency is to ensure scalability by design and to invest in
automation. Having built our technology on cloud native platforms since inception, we have further automated pension
transfers and transactions in an often paper-based industry. This year we continue to invest in the straight-through-
processing of pension transfers and searriess contributions through Easy Bank Transfer (our capability of initiating a pension
top up in under 60 seconds directly froma custorrer's bank). \We maintained the security of our technology platform becoming
recertified to ISO 27001, a global informetion security standard.

Finally, we prioritised our investing solution range and with a significant proportion of our customers desiring investrrents that
meke a difference in the world, we introduced our Inpact Fan in February 2023. Investing exclusively in conpanies with a
proven and measurable inpact, the plan enables our custorrers to solve the world's great social and environmental problerrs
while growing their pensions for the long term We secured Voting Choice and began voting on 85% of our asset base
(Tailored, Tracker and 4Rus) through the ISS SR Policy, reflecting the views of our customers in key decisions at the
companies they own through their pensions.5 We were pleased to receive another Excellent Value for Money score for our
at-retirement product range fromour Governance Advisory Arrangement.

While these have been the key pillars of our success to date, it is clear that a new strategic pillar has gained inportance in our
internal dialogue: Resilience. Having achieved Adjusted EBITDA profitability in the fourth quarter of this year, we are well
positioned to continue to grow our market share from a position of trust.! Key to that growth is the ability to maintain the
security and operational resilience of our infrastructure for the benefit of our custormers. We will continue to deploy extensive
resources in this area with a particular focus on cyber security.

Proposed US Expansion

We have also recently announced our plans to expand into the United States of Anrerica ('US'), having taken an inportant step
by entering into an exclusive, non-binding termsheet with a large, US-based global financial institution.

The US has the world's largest Defined Contribution pension market, representing approximately 80% of the global total and
$22.5 trilion in assets.® However, many consumers still struggle to prepare adequately for retirement arridst an array of
confusing and difficult to use investment options. Given the context of the enormous US market opportunity, we see the
potential for our US business to grow rapidly, becorring at least the size of its UK business over the next decade.

Under the proposed strategic relationship, PensionBee will deliver the US service through PensionBee Inc, a yet to be
established wholly-owned subsidiary of PensionBee Group plc. PensionBee Inc will be established in Delaware, with
operational headquarters in New York. We will manage the operations of the US business, including the hiring of a local team
meking available our aw ard-winning online retirement proposition and UK-based proprietary technology to consuners in the US
Defined Contribution market. We will enable US consurrers to easily consolidate and roll over their 401(k) plans into a new
Individual Retirenent Account ('IRA").”

QOur US-based partner will provide its expertise and substantial marketing funding. Correspondingly, our financial contribution
will be financed fromthe Conpany's existing resources. Entry into a final binding agreement betw een the parties is subject to
confirmatory due diligence, legal documentation and regulatory approvals, with launch expected in late 2024.

Looking Forward

As we look forward to 2024, we continue to be inspired by the size and opportunity within the UK Defined Contribution
pension market. Cur latest analysis indicates the UK Transferable Pension Market now exceeds £1 trillion of assets and that
nore and nore consuners are consolidating their pensions than before. As a result of our relentless focus on the consurer
and their needs, we will continue to grow our market share in the UK.

We are also excited to progress our plans for the US, the world's largest Defined Contribution pension market, with $22.5
trilion of assets. This transformative step for the Corrpany will help millions of US consumers look forward to a happy
retirement.



With our established brand and proven scalable technology platform we remain committed to serving consurrers and growing
PensionBee for the success of all our stakeholders. As we approach our 10 year anniversary since PensionBee was
founded, we look forward to 2024 being another exciting year for us.

Romi Savova
Chief Executive Officer

13 March 2024

Notes:
1. See definitions in the Measuring our Performance section.

2 Source: PensionBee brand tracker. Prompted brand awareness in January 2024 measured through a consumer survey asking 'Which of
the following have you heard of ?' with respect to UK financial services brands: Aviva 86%, Scottish Widows 76%, Standard Life 68%,
Royal London 55%, PensionBee 50%, Hargreaves Lansdown 39%, Vanguard 36%, Fidelity 34%, Nutmeg 32%, AJ Bell 29%, Interactive
Investor 11%. Compares to PensionBee's prompted brand awareness as at January 2023 of 52%, sourced from PensionBee brand
tracker.

3. Compared to average app store rating of 4.6 out of 5 (4.7 App Store rating and 4.5 Google Play rating and a Customer Retention Rate
of over 95% for the year ended 31 December 2022.

4. Call queue time of 23 seconds calculated as the average time customers are waiting in a queue to be put through to a team member
(based on 41,622 phone calls in 2023) as compared to 115 seconds in 2022 (based on 44,956 phone calls). PensionBee's Trustpilot
score as at 12 January 2024 of 4.6x out of 5 (based on 10,004 reviews) as compared to 4.6x out of 5 (based on 8,270 reviews) as at
31 December 2022.

5. Reflects 85% of the Assets under Administration across the Tailored, Tracker and 4Plus investment plans as at 31 December 2023.
See definitions in the Measuring our Performance section.

6. Investment Company Institute, "Release: Quarterly Retirement Market Data" as at 13 December, 2023. Includes the sum of Defined
Contribution Plans and Individual Retirement Accounts ('IRA's).

7. A 401k is an employer-sponsored Defined Contribution retirement plan into which employees can contribute and into which employers
may also make matching contributions. An Individual Retirement Account (IRA) is a tax-advantaged retirement savings account into
which an individual can contribute either pre- or post-tax money and which grows on either a tax-deferred or tax-free basis.

Operating and Financial Review!

Trading for the financial year 2023 has been strong and in line with guidance, with high levels of growth achieved across our
key performance indicators ('KH's) along with the achieverment of Adjusted EBITDA profitability across the fourth quarter of
the year, fulfiling one of our core financial objectives. We achieved this objective by virtue of our continued growth in terms of
new custorrers and strong net inflows from both new and existing customers, through the inherent scalability of our
technology platform and with continued cost discipline. We have continued to denonstrate particular strength in custorrer
growth, with the nunber of Invested Custoners ('IC) increasing by 25% to 229,000 (2022: 183,000) and Assets under
Administration (‘AUA") increasing by 44% to £4.4bn (2022: £3.0bn). This was underpinned by strong Net Fows of £857m
(2022: £863m) fromnew and existing customers together with positive merket performance.? Revenue for 2023 increased by
35% to £23.8m(2022: £17.7m). Profit/(Loss) before Tax for 2023 was £(10.7)m(2022: £(22.4)m).

Growth in Invested Customers Translates into Increasing AUA Which Drives Revenue
[000s) {Em) [Em)
- -
—v’/ - - __,/
5% ad% ] i | 5%
- 8 - . -
o / -~

Driving customer acquisition through efficient investment in brand awareness

As at Year End
Dec-2023 Dec-2022 YoY
Advertising and Marketing Expenses
Advertising and Marketing Expenses (£m) 9.7) (16.6) -41%
Cost per Invested Custormer (2)3 241 248 within threshold
Customers
Invested Custorrers (thousands) 229 183 25%

This year we continued to realise the benefits of our prior investrment, fulfiling our growth strategy, driving strong customer
acauisition with less spend than the previous vear. Marketina spend in 2023 was £9.7m (2022: £16.6m). brinaina our



cunulative marketing expenditure to more than £55m, highlighting our commitmrent to investing in brand awareness while
reducing our overall Cost per Invested Custorrer ('CPC). Qur investrrent in the brand to date has helped to cement PensionBee
as a household name, with brand aw areness of 50%.4 Our customer acquisition strategy continues to be led by our in-house
Data Ratform which provides extensive and invaluable insights, guiding decision-meking and the optimisation of our
performance marketing channels. Our focus has been on driving customer acquisition supported by insights from our data
capability. With this approach, we are able to nore effectively and accurately target custormers who are likely to convert - a
key reason why we were able to grow our Invested Customer base by 25% to 229,000 (2022: 183,000).

Qur data-led, multi-channel approach to marketing focuses on trusted and cost-effective channels. Through YouTube and Tik
Tok, we have successfully reached nillions of customers. We brought educational initiatives to customrers in ways that
increase appeal and brand recognition, for exanple, through in-person roadshows and our Lovie award nominated Pension
Confident Podcast. In addition, we maintained our brand name recognition through the renewal of our partnership with
Brentford Football Club (‘Brentford FC). We have remained the official pension partner sponsor, and have becone the left
sleeve sponsor for the Men's first teamand the 'front of shirt' sponsor for the B team Acadeny and Worren's team Partnering
with a Premier League teamhas helped the PensionBee brand to reach nillions of football spectators across the UK, building
custonrer trust in the process.

As guided, the Cost per Invested Custorrer ('CPIC) has extended its downward trajectory this year. This can be attributed to
our increased brand awareness as a result of prior investment in merketing as well as our data-driven acquisition capabilities,
which have enabled us to acquire custorrers efficiently. In 2023, we grew our Invested Customer base by 25%, with CAC
declining to £241 (2022: £248). Continuing on this dow nward trajectory will be instrumental in driving ongoing sustainable long-
term Adjusted EBITDA profitability. 1

Strong Asset Growth Momentum driven by High Retention Rates and Cost Disciplined Acquisition

As at Year End

Dec-2023 Dec-2022 YoY

Customer Retention Rate (% of IC)' 96% 97% Stable at >95%
AUA Retention Rate (% of AUA)" 96% 97% Stable at >95%
Opening AUA (£m) 3,025 2,587 17%
Gross Inflows (£m) 1,174 1,060 11%
Gross Outflows (£m) (318) (197) 61%
Net Flows (£m)’ 857 863 -1%
Market Grow th/(Contraction) and Other (£m) 468 (424) n/m
Closing AUA (£m) 4,350 3,025 44%
Net Flows (£m) 857 863 -1%
Of which Net Flow's fromNew Custorrers (£m) 729 685 7%
OF which Net Fow's from Existing Custorrers (£m) 127 178 -28%

In 2023, we delivered 44% year-on-year growth in our AUA base from £3,025mto £4,350m This denonstrated our ability to
continue to execute on our growth strategy, whilst sinultaneously meeting our profitability targets. We drove AUA growth
primarily through acquiring new custoners, building trust and aining to be the main pension provider of choice for our
customers. Our product, which includes various tools, features and capabilities, helps our custorrers feel nore 'Pension
Confident' as they plan for a happy retirement. This is supported by our high Retention Rate of existing customers, which
continues to be nore than 95%. We recorded £1.2bn of Gross Inflows this year (2022: £1.1bn).

Across the year we acquired 46,000 Invested Custorrers (2022: 66,000), from which we generated £729m of Net Fows
(2022: £685m Net Fows from New Custorrers). Leveraging our strong brand awareness, coupled with our data-driven
custorrer acquisition capability, we were able to generate a 7% year-on-year increase in Net Flows from New Custorrers,
even though we reduced merketing expenditure by 41% over the same period. Additionally, the custormers we acquired in
2023 had a higher average age, and by extension, a higher inconing pension pot size.

Net Flows by Customer Cohorts (£m)
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Qur existing customers have continued to entrust us with their retiremment savings, selecting PensionBee as their primary
pension provider, adding additional pensions and making regular pension contributions. Growth from existing custorrers
represented £127mof AUA in 2023 (2022: £178m). Since inception, we have been able to maintain high Qustormer and AUA
Retention Rates of >95%, with this trend continuing in 2023. This reflects PensionBee's conmitrrent to continuous product
development which helps to drive engagerment. Our app, which supports our aim of making pensions sinple, provides a rich
content experience to help customers make decisions around core pension managenment and retirement planning, such as
how much to contribute. As is customary in the industry, our custorrers' pensions are predominantly invested in global equity
capital markets and therefore the performance of the market drives novenents in AUA. As such, given that global equity
markets largely recovered fromlast year's period of extreme volatility, we saw positive market movement account for £468m
of the overall AUA growth this year (2022: £(424)m).

Resilient Revenue Margin drove an Overwhelming Majority of Recurring Revenue

As at Year End
Dec-2023 Dec-2022 YoY
Revenue Margin (% of AUA)' 0.64% 0.63% +1bp
Revenue (£m) 23.8 17.7 35%

We translated strong year-on-year AUA growth of 44% for 2023 (2022: 17%) into Revenue growth of 35%, reaching £23.8m
(2022: £17.7m), by virtue of our resilient Realised Revenue Margin (the annual managenent fee after discounts) of 0.64%
(2022: 0.63%).

Since the vast mejority of our Revenue is derived from annual management fees charged as a percentage of AUA, the high
retention of Invested Customers and AUA mekes the overw heling mejority of our Revenue recurring in nature. Revenue is
also inclusive of revenue generated fromother activities, including our partnership with intermediaries such as LifeSearch, as
well as ad-hoc incore, although this currently represents an inmraterial portion of our overall Revenue.

Hficient Investment in our Industry Leading Technology Platform, People and Product

As at Year End
Dec-2023 Dec-2022 YoY
Money Manager Costs (Em) (3.2 (2.8) 15%
Enployee Benefits Expense
(excluding Share-based Paynents) (£m) (12.3) (96) 29%
Other Operating Expenses (£m) (6.8) (8.2) -18%
Technology Platform Costs & Other Operatin nses
o Operating Bxpe (19.1) (17.8) 7%

Our Technology Platform

During 2023, we continued to make further investrrents into enhancing the capabilities of our nodern, scalable and secure
proprietary technology, to help position PensionBee for future growth. Our cloud-based, AP-driven platform allows for a
granular level of optinisation, enabling us to deliver new innovative features, refinements and increased autorration at pace.
The scalability of our technology platformis highlighted by the achieverrent of a year-on-year decrease in Technology Ratform
Costs & Other Operating Expenses as a percentage of Revenue from (101)% in 2022 to (80)% in 2023 driven in part by a
reduction in Other Operating Expenses to £(6.8)m (2022: £(8.2)m). Continuing on this trajectory of improving cost efficiency is
central to driving long-termoperating leverage.

The Conpany has continued to invest in the scalability of its technology platform through a focus on internal automation,
efficiency, security and pension transfer inprovements to support productivity. There has been further integration with the
Conpany's proprietary data platform and its product development processes to facilitate best practice decision-making. We
have enphasised the improvenent of our internal automation to support productivity, including the streanining of our provider
processes. One of the ways we measure productivity is through the Invested Customers per Staff Menber metric, w hich saw
an improvenent of 15% from 970 in 2022 to 1,112 in 2023.5 Benefits from investrent in autonration were instrunental in
achieving Adjusted BBITDA profitability across the fourth quarter of 2023.

We have continued to explore and adopt artificial intelligence tooling within our departrents to leverage its many benefits. For
instance, we have begun to use it for initial content generation, project research and coding problemresolution, to name a few
areas. We are also progressively integrating our data platform within our daily product management operations, linking core
KBs to projects to ensure our multidisciplinary development teans remein productive and inpactful. To facilitate conpany-wide
data-led decision meking, we have also trained enployees of varying disciplines in utilising the platform

Given our focus on security, we continued to inplement cyber security tools and best practices. We reinforced a culture of
security awareness through increasing standardisation, nonitoring and automation of information security operations and
conpliance.

Our Product

PensionBee has developed an excellent record of delivering industry leading customer service, which is denonstrated by our
continued Excellent Trustpilot rating of 4.6x (2022: 4.6x ), as well as our consistently high Custorrer Retention Rate of >95%.
This is a result of our enphasis on customer satisfaction and continuous product innovation.

Qur data supports our conclusion that engaged customers are nore likely to grow their pension savings with us and are
therefore more likely to enjoy the type of retiremment they deserve. That is why this year, our multidisciplinary 'erpowered
teans' continued to develop our product offering for the benefit of our customrers, incrementally rolling out new features aimed
at increasing engagement with our customers. Our searchable FAQs and enhanced help functionalities were developed to
guide our customers to nore easily find our helpful content. Inproving our educational content was a key focus for us. Qur
customrers can now read our content in-app and are served with personalised content features based on our predictions of
their interests, to help them meke the nost of their noney. This includes educating them on helpful conplerrents to their
pension, such as life insurance.

We continuously explore ways in which we can help our customers manage their pensions more easily. Our new Regular
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nonthly payments, via our desktop or app, directly to their bank account, effectively saving our custorrers time and inproving
convenience. Listening to our customrers is inportant to us and their feedback helps us to design products that make managing
their pensions easier.

To help our customers with their long-term financial planning we launched our State Pension Age Calculator, designed to help
savers evaluate if they can retire before they're eligible to receive the State Pension. We also launched a new online tax relief
calculator w hich encourages our custorrers to make the nmost of their pension contributions ahead of the tax year-end.

Given that the safety and security of our customers' data is of paramount inportance to us, we also inmplemented mandatory
two-factor authentication for all our custorrers.

Qur custorrers' overall financial wellbeing is important to us. This is why we recently launched a partnership with LifeSearch
to help our customers obtain a range of insurance products including life and critical ilness cover, to enable themto continue
to save for a happy retirement with the confidence that they have a source of financial support even if the worst does occur.
Initial custormer demmand has been positive and w e look forward to seeing this progress.

Our People
We continued to invest in automation and therefore our overall headcount remeined relatively stable at approximetely 206
average full-time enployees in 2023 (2022: 189), w hile the associated Enployee Benefits Expense increased to £(12.5)mfor

2023 (2022: £(9.6)m), reflecting the advancement of our team and ensuring we support enployees during a high inflation
environment.

Our Money Managers

Money Manager Costs increased to £(3.2)min 2023 (2022: £(2.8)m), a lower rate than the increase in Revenue, due to the
maintenance of conrpetitive pricing with money managers.

Profitability Metrics

As at Year End
Dec-2023 Dec-2022 YoY
Adjusted EBITDA (£Em) (8.2 (19.5) 58%
Adjusted EBITDA Margin (% of Revenue) (35)% (110)% +76ppt
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (Em) (10.7) (22.4) 52%

In 2023, we mede significant progress towards Adjusted EBITDA profitability, achieving sustained Adjusted EBITDA
profitability across the fourth quarter of the year. The effective deployment of our discretionary marketing budget and
continued cost discipline, as well as the benefits of operating leverage gained through the scalability of our technology
platform were instrumental in achieving this pivotal milestone.

Adjusted EBITDA Margin in 2023

Q12023 Q2 2023 Q3 2023 Q4 2023

(17)%

(50)%

(98)%

Adjusted BBITDA Margin inproved from (110)% in 2022 to (35)% in 2023. Adjusted EBITDA profitability was achieved in Q4
2023, with a positive Adjusted EBITDA Margin of 11% as conpared to (98)%, (50)% and (17)% in Q1, Q2 and Q3 respectively.
Adjusted BBITDA captures Advertising and Marketing Expenses but excludes the Share-based Payment costs and Listing
Costs.

As at Year End
Dec-2023 Dec-2022 YoY
Share-based Payrrent (£m) (2.2) (1.9 15%
Transaction Costs (£m) - (0.7) -100%
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (Em) (10.7) (22.9) 52%
Taxation (£m) 0.1 0.3 n/m
Basic Earnings per Share (4.73)p (9.97)p 53%

Profit/(Loss) before Tax narrowed to £(10.7)m for 2023 from £(22.4)min 2022, reflecting our progress towards profitability
and show casing the operating leverage in our model, w hilst w e continue to grow.



Share-based Payment costs increased during the period to £(2.2)m (2022: £(1.9)m).

Taxation included enhanced tax credits in relation to routine Research and Development refunds. No deferred tax asset was
recognised with respect to the carried forward losses.

Basic Earnings per Share ('BPS') was (4.73)p for 2023 (2022: (9.97)p), the inprovenent reflecting the progress made towards
profitability.

Financial Position

The Group's balance sheet remains strong and the Conpany is confident in its ability to maintain an appropriate cash balance
going forward. The Cash and Cash Equivalents balance was £12.2mat the end of this year (2022: £21.3m) having decreased
by £9.1min the 2023 financial year due to continued investment in marketing as well as our technology platform to generate
future returns (2022: net decrease of £22.2m). As of the end of 2023, the Group had no borrowings.

Regulatory Capital and Financial Resources
PensionBee Limited, a subsidiary of the Conpany, is authorised and regulated by the FCA and therefore adheres to capital
requirements set by the FCA. As of Decerrber 2023, the capital resources stood at £12.6m (unaudited) as conpared to a

capital resource requirement of £1.6m (unaudited), resulting in coverage of 7.9x. We have maintained a healthy surplus over
our regulatory capital requirement throughout the year and continue to manage our financial resources prudently.

Summary Financial Highlights*

As at Year End

Dec-2023 Dec-2022 YoY

Revenue (£Em) 23.8 17.7 35%

Money Manager Costs,® Technology Ratform (22.3) (20.6) 8%

Costs & Other Operating Expenses (£m)’

Adjusted EBITDA (£m)** (8.2 (19.5) 58%
Adjusted EBITDA Margin (% of Revenue) (35)% (110)% +76 ppt
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (Em) (10.7) (22.9) 52%
Basic Earnings per Share (4.73)p (9.97)p 53%

See definitions in the Measuring our Performance section.

** PensionBee's Key Performance Indicators include an altemative perf ormance measure (‘APM), which is Adjusted EBITDA. APV are not
defined by Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') and should be considered together with the Group's IFRS measurements of
performance. PensionBee believes this APM assists in providing additional insight into the underlying performance of PensionBee and aids
comparability of information between reporting periods. A reconciliation to the nearest IFRS number is provided in Note 25 of the Financial
Statements 'Altemative Performance Measure'.

Notes:
1. See the Measuring our Performance section.
2. As at 31 December 2023. Invested Customers (IC') means those customers who have transferred pension assets or made

contributions into one of PensionBee's investment plans. Assets under Administration (AUA) is the total invested value of pension
assets within PensionBee Invested Customers' pensions. It measures the new inflows less the outflows and records a change in the
market value of the assets. AUA is a measurement of the growth of the business and is the primary driver of Revenue. Net Flows
measures the cumulative inflow of PensionBee AUA from consolidation and contribution ('Gross Inflows'), less the outflows from
withdrawals and transfers out (‘Gross Outflows') over the relevant period.

3. Cost per Invested Customer (‘CPIC') means the cumulative advertising and marketing costs incurred since PensionBee commenced
operations up until the relevant point in time divided by the cumulative number of Invested Customers at that point in time. This
measure monitors cost discipline of customer acquisition. PensionBee's desired CPIC threshold is £200-£250.

4. Source: PensionBee brand tracker. Prompted brand awareness in January 2024 measured through a consumer survey asking 'Which
of the following have you heard of 7 with respect to UK financial services brands: Aviva 86%, Scottish Widows 76%, Standard Life
68%, Royal London 55%, PensionBee 50%, Hargreaves Lansdown 39%, Vanguard 36%, Fidelity 34%, Nutmeg 32%, AJ Bell 29%,
Interactive Investor 11%. Compares to PensionBee's prompted brand awereness as at January 2023 of 52%, sourced from
PensionBee brand tracker.

5. Total workforce of 198 as of 31 December 2023 includes 192 UK employees and six non-UK contractors, but excludes four Non-
Executive Directors. Total workforce of 208 as of 31 December 2022 includes 204 UK employees and four non-UK contractors, but
excludes four Non-Executive Directors. The Invested Customer per Staff Metric is calculated by dividing the number of Invested
Customers by the total workforce at the end of the period.

6. Money Manager Costs are variable costs paid to PensionBee's money managers.
7. Technology Platform Costs & Other Operating Expenses comprises Employee Benefits Expense (excluding Share-based Payment)
and Other Operating Expenses.

Measuring our Performance

When considering the overall performance of PensionBee, we use a range of key performance indicators ('KPI's) to monitor
and assess our progress against our strategy.

Financial Performance Measures



Revenue 2023: £23.8m 35% | Revenue means the income generated from the asset base of PensionBee's

2022: £17.7m customers, essentially annual management fees charged on the AUA, together
. : with a minor revenue contribution from other services.

Adjusted EBITDA* | 2023: £(8.2)m 58% | Adiusted EBITDA is the operating profit or loss for the year before taxation,
2022: £(19.5)m finance costs, depreciation, share based compensation and listing costs. This
. : measure is a proxy for operating cash flow.
Adjusted BBITDA 2023: (35)% +76ppt1 Adjusted EBITDA Margin means Adjusted EBITDA as a percentage of revenue for
Margin 2022: (110)% the relevant year.
Profit/(Loss) 2023: £(10.7)m 52%, = Profit/(Loss) before Tax is a measure that looks at PensionBee's profit or losses
before 2022: £(22.4)m for the year before it has paid corporate income tax.
Tax ('PBT")
Basic Earnings per | 2023: (4.73)p 53%, = Basic Eamings per Share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to
Share ('EPS') 2022: (9.97) ordinary equity holders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary
- (9.97)p shares in issue during the period.
Net Cash Flow 2023; £(9.1)m 59%, | Net Cash Flowis the sum of cash generated by operations, investments and
2022: £(22.2)m financing activities, less cash used in operations, investments and financing
. . activities.

* PensionBee's Key Performance Indicators include an altemative performance measure (APM), which is Adjusted EBITDA. APMs are not
defined by Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') and should be considered together with the Group's IFRS measurements of
performance. PensionBee believes this APM assists in providing additional insight into the underlying performance of PensionBee and aids
comparability of information between reporting periods. A reconciliation to the nearest IFRS number is provided in Note 25 of the Financial
Statements 'Altemative Performance Measures'.

Non-Financial Performance Measures

Assets under 2023: £4.4bn 44% | Assets under Administration is the total invested value of pension assets within
Administration . PensionBee's Invested Customers' pensions. It measures the new inflows less
(‘AuAY) 2022: £3.0bn the outflows and records a change in the market value of the assets. This KPI

has been selected because AUA is a measurement of the growth of the business
and is the primary driver of Revenue.

AUA Retention 2023: 96% Stable at | AUA Retention measures the percentage of retained PensionBee AUA from

Rate 2022: 97% >05%; | transfers out over the average of the year. High AUA retention provides more

(% of AUA) . © certainty of future Revenue. This measure can also be used to monitor customer
¢ satisfaction.

Net Aows 2023: £857m -1% | Net Flows measures the cumulative inflow of PensionBee AUA from

consolidation and contribution ('Gross Inflows'), less the outflows from
withdrawals and transfers out ('Gross Outflows') over the relevant period.

Invested 2023: 229k 25% | Invested Customers means those customers who have transferred pension

Customers 2022 183k assets or made contributions into one of PensionBee's investment plans.

('IC")

Customer 2023: 96% Stable at | Customer Retention Rate measures the percentage of retained PensimBee

Retention Rate 2022: 97% >95% | Invested Customers over the average of the year. High customer retention

(%of IC) . provides more certainty of future Revenue. This measure can also be used to

° monitor customer satisf action.

Cost per Invested | 2023: £241 Within Costt per Inrrvezstgd Cgmm' Beeneans tmulativet?dvenisir?_m nrellamet::t]g

Customer . threshold | costs incurred since jonBee com operations up unti eval

(‘CPIC)) 2022: £248 point in time divided by the cumulative number of Invested Customers at that
point in time. This measure monitors cost discipline of customer acquisition.
PensionBee's desired CPIC threshold is £200-£250.

Revenue Margin 2023: 0.64% +1bp | Realised Revenue Margin expresses the recurring Revenue over the average

(% of AUA) 2022: 0.63% quarterly AUA held in PensionBee's investment plans over the period.

Notes:

1. A ppt is a percentage point. A percentage point is the unit for the arithmetic difference of two percentages.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Principal Risks

We have identified six top-level risks which could potentially have a material adverse inpact on the Conpany's business or
long-term performance, and if not appropriately mitigated they could result in unfavourable public perceptions of the
Conpany's business prospects and cause significant reputational damage. These risks could arise frominternal or external
events, acts or onissions. The risks mentioned below do not purport to be exhaustive, as there may be additional risks that the
Conpany has not yet identified or has deenmed to be immaterial.

Regulatory Risk

Qur business is subject to risks relating to changes in UK government policy and applicable regulations. Whilst we have
historically been beneficiaries of favourable regulatory changes, including through the introduction of Autormatic Enrolment and
Pension Freedorrs, any regulatory changes w hich are negative for our business could have a material adverse effect on our
prospects.

PensionBee's operations are subject to authorisation and supervision from the Financial Conduct Authority ('FCA'), and
supervision from HYRC and the Information Conmrissioner's Office. PensionBee may fall, or be held to have failed, to corrply
with regulations. Such regulations and approvals may change meking corrpliance nore onerous and costly. If the FCA or other
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custorrer redress or other regulatory sanctions. PensionBee must also conrply with relevant regulatory capital and liquidity
requirerrents.

We may be subject to conrplaints or claims from custorrers and third parties in the normel course of business. If a large
nurrber of conrplaints, or conplaints resuiting in substantial customer and third party related losses, were upheld against
PensionBee, it could have a meterial adverse effect on our business and financial condition.

Information Security Risk
PensionBee faces various risks related to the confidentiality, availability and integrity of our IT systerns.

We hold confidential and personal data, which is subject to strict data protection and privacy law's in the UK, including the Data
Protection Act and UK GDPR The loss or misuse of data could result in a meterial loss of business, financial losses, regulatory
enforcement actions and significant harm to our reputation. If our informetion security processes, policies and procedures
relating to personal data are not fully inplemented and adhered to by our enployees, or if any of our third party service
providers fail to manage data in a conrpliant manner, we could face financial sanctions and reputational damege.

Furthermore, our operations are susceptible to cybercrime and loss or theft of data. Failure to prevent such actions, including
circumvention of our information security processes, policies and procedures, could result in financial losses, business
interruption and unauthorised access or disclosure of personal data.

There is also a risk of ineffective controls, or control failures, that are in place to ensure our technology architecture is fit for
purpose, including the infrastructure required to support applications, networking, hardware and software, resulting in our
inability to meet the standards required to deliver to internal and external user expectations.

Operational Risk

During the regular course of business, we may be exposed to adverse financial or reputational inpact due to inadequate or
failed internal processes, people performance or [T systens, or due to third-parties or external events. Key operational
process risks are linked to our customer service, banking, finance, marketing and change inplementation processes.
Operational Risk also includes our risks in the areas of human resource management, risk management and internal
governance.

PensionBee is dependent on third-party technology and financial services providers for the provision of asset management,
banking and technology services. Any termination, interruption or reduced performance of the services provided by these
third parties could negatively inpact the provision of our services and have a material adverse effect on our reputation and
profitability.

Qur operational infrastructure and business continuity may be affected by other failures or interruption fromevents, some of
which are beyond our control. Our systens and the systens of our third-party providers may be vulnerable to fire, flood and
other natural disasters, power loss or telecommunications or data network failures, inproper or negligent operation by
enployees or service providers, unauthorised physical or electronic access, or other causes. There is no guarantee that our
preventative measures would protect us fromall potential damage arising fromany of the events described above.

Financial Risk
Market Risk

Qur business may be adversely affected by negative sudden or prolonged fluctuations in global capital merkets. \We generate
the vast mejority of Revenue in the form of fees charged on a recurring basis calculated by reference to the value of our
Assets under Administration. Our Revenue and profitability are therefore directly influenced by the health of the global capital
markets. A general deterioration in the global econony and a resulting decline in capital markets, or an increase in volatility,
may have a negative inpact on the value of our custorrers' pensions and their overall confidence to meke new contributions
to, or to consolidate new pensions into, their FensionBee pension.

Credit Risk

PensionBee is dependent on third-party financial services providers for the provision of asset management and banking
services. We are reliant upon these third parties for the safekeeping of our own and our customers' assets. A default by one
of these third parties would have a material adverse effect on our reputation and financial position.

Strategic Risk

The pensions merket is conrpetitive and there is no guarantee that we will be able to continue to meintain the grow th levels we
have achieved to date, nor that we will be able to maintain our financial performance either at historical or anticipated future
levels. OQur conpetitors include a variety of financial services firms and our merket is characterised by ongoing technological
progression, including of the underlying infrastructure and user experience. There is no guarantee that we will continue to
outpace our conpetitors. In addition, the pension market remeins cost-sensitive and conrpetitors could materially undercut our
fees, thereby generating pressure on our revenues. Any failure to maintain our conrpetitive position could lead to a reduction in
revenues and profitability as well as lower future growth.

We are dependent upon the experience, skills and knowledge of our Directors and our Bxecutive Management Team to
implement our strategy. The loss of a significant number of Directors, Executive Management and/or other key enrployees, or
the inability to recruit suitably experienced, qualified and trained staff as needed, may cause significant disruption to our
business and the ability to achieve our strategic objectives.

Climate Risk

. As climate change intensifies, dangerous weather events are beconing nore frequent and more severe. More
frequent and intense droughts, storrrs, heat waves, rising sea levels, nmelting glaciers and warming oceans can
directly harm life and wreak havoc on people's livelihoods and communities. These significant shifts in the global
climate have a potential to adversely affect our enployees, customers and other stakeholders, and have broader
implications on econorric, social and cultural assets.

Physical risks fromincreased variability and extrenity of climatic conditions can reduce the value of certain assets and income
strearrs. Qlimate change could also affect monetary policy by slowing productivity growth (for exanple, through damege to
health and infrastructure) and heightening the uncertainty and inflation volatility. This can justify the adaptation of monetary
policy to the new challenges. Any of these changes could in turn have a meterial adverse effect on our business and financial
position.



Summary of Risks and Mitigations

Through the risk management processes described above, we have taken the appropriate steps to manage risk in accordance
with the Board's risk appetite. The suntrary of the key mitigating factors is presented below.

Principal Risk

Risk Definition

Key Mitigations

Regulatory
Risk

The risk of regulatory sanctions,
meterial financial loss, or reputational
damege the Conrpany could suffer as
aresult of its failure to corrply with
applicable law s, regulations, rules, or
related internal standards and codes
of conduct

Maintaining a robust risk management framework and a set of
internal policies w hich are review ed regularly

e Ensure adequate staff training and conTrunication for
key policies and procedures

o Comrprehensive second line assurance progranTre in
place providing oversight over the effectiveness of
regulatory conrpliance and related controls

«  Robust change approval process requiring regulatory
conpliance checks

¢ Regulatory capital and liquidity planning and nonitoring
through the Finance function

. Regular interactions with industry bodies to
proactively mmonitor trends

. Values-based culture and strategy centred around
Consurrer Duty

Information
Security Risk

The risk of data loss, theft or
disruption of information systens both
internally and throughout the supply
chain, which impacts confidentiality,
integrity and availability

e  Regular Data back-up and restoration testing to allow for
recovery in the event of cyber attack or corruption of data

e PRroactive technical and analytical vulnerability assessment
and mitigation

. Monitoring key third party services and performance
netrics as part of the ISMS

. Ongoing infrastructure assessments against business
requirements

. Ongoing conpliance and certification to ISO 27001 and
Cyber Essentials Pus

. Ongoing monitoring of cormrpliance with applicable
regulation and legislation in respect of Data Protection

. Maintaining a robust policy set and controls to keep
information secure

e Frequent training for all enployees to pronote a culture of
security aw areness

e  Continuing to invest in the Information Security Progranme
in order to mitigate the evolving cyber risks

. Robust business continuity plans in place for critical
assets and functions, w hich are tested regularly

. 24x7 | 365 threat detection, monitoring and response on
critical assets to detect and prevent malicious behaviour
proactively and reactively

Operational
Risk

The risk of loss, disruption of
business or adverse regulatory action
resulting frominadequate or failed
internal processes, people
performance, systens, or due to third
parties or external events

e Inplementing automation to reduce manual processing

. A conprehensive set of internal controls, operational
procedures and Corrpany policies

e Periodic training for all enployees and specialised training
for custorrer service teans

. Structured performance managenment for all enployees
and formelised succession planning for key roles

. Robust external supplier selection and due diligence
process with ongoing monitoring of key suppliers

. Hfective internal governance to adequately oversee and
challenge the risk positions
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accountability and transparency

Financial Risk The risk of the Conpany's inability to e Geographic and asset class diversification of the plans
fulfil its financial obligations or internal

objectives due fo loss of revenue e Recurring Revenue fromlong-duration assets

resulting fromadverse price
moverrents in the capital merkets, or
the inpact of worsening e Financial planning based on scenario analysis
creditw orthiness or default of a key
financial partner e Partnering with only large and reputable asset managers
and banking institutions
. Internal controls in place monitoring capital quality and
reserves
. Robust processes in place to ensure the integrity of
financial data
Strategic Risk The risk of failures in strategic e  Core objectives calibrated using customer and regulatory
planning and execution leading to the trends and feedback
Corrpany not achieving its core
objectives

. Robust strategic change managerent internal controls in
place

. Enploying agile product development and deployrent
cycles

Climate Risk The risk of negative impact of climate | o Snrell physical footprint, remote working, cloud-based
change or its broader econorric, technology

financial and societal consequences
on the Conpany, or the Conrpany's
failure to meet sustainability
requirements froma conmmercial,
regulatory or stakeholder perspective | ®  Ongoing monitoring of regulatory corrpliance

e Risktransfer policies

. Screenings applied in our funds to reduce harnful
exposures (Tailored Fan, Fossil Fuel Free Han, Inpact
Ran)

. Using asset managers, banking and cloud providers that
have robust business continuity plans in place

. Cearly assigned climate risk-related roles and
responsibilities

. Monitoring climate risks faced today and under future
scenarios

Viability Statement

In accordance with provision 31 of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Board has assessed the viability of PensionBee
Group plc and its subsidiary PensionBee Lirited (together the 'Group') for the four-year period to Decentber 2027, considering
this to be an appropriate period over which to assess the Group's strategy and its capital requiremments, considering the
investrrent needs of the business and the potential risks and uncertainties that could inmpact the Group's ability to meet its
strategic objectives. The Board considers a four-year period to be an appropriate time frame because it would likely capture
the length of a potential dow nside business cycle and provide sufficient time to identify and execute mitigating actions required
to address the stress test scenarios as outlined below .

This assessment has been made giving consideration to the financial position, regulatory capital and liquidity requirements of
the Group (as set out in the Operating and Financial Review within the Strategic Report), in the context of the Comrpany's
strategy, business nodel and mediumtermbusiness plan, together with an assessment of the principal risks and uncertainties
(as set out in the Managing our Risks section of the Strategic Report). Such risks have been categorised into Regulatory Risk,
Information Security Risk, Operational Risk, Financial Risk, Reputational Risk, Strategic Risk and Climate Risk, in accordance
with our risk management framew ork.

PensionBee Linited is an FCA regulated entity and therefore is required to hold appropriate levels of own funds which are at
all times in excess of its Liquid Capital Requiremrent and other capital requiremrents.

The Board-approved medium term plan assunes the business continues to grow Invested Customers and AUA through
continued investment in its customer proposition, marketing, people and technology. It is assumed that there are no significant
or prolonged market moverrents in underlying asset values fromthe time the plan was approved by the Board.

The Board has also considered the potential impact of the following stress test scenarios, which together represent a severe
and unlikely, but possible scenario. The stress test scenarios would inpact the plan from2024 onw ards:

« Financial Risk (Market Risk) - A material reduction in global equity markets as a result of global macroeconorric uncertainty

(such as geopolitical disruptions, persistent inflation and a high interest rate environment) and prolonged equity market
volatility has been assumed over the forecast period. More specifically, the analysis assumed a significant decline in the
global equity markets, falling by 50% in the first year and remaining depressed until 2025, with a linear recovery to the pre-

crisis level assumed for the remainder of the forecast period.

Information Security Risk - The materialisation of a confidentiality, availability or integrity event that undernines our

rent tation and rediices conversion and rediices avarana nensinn not sizes  The analvsis assiimed a matarial rediiction in the
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customer conversion rate and average pension pot size of newly acquired customers over the forecast period, whereby

they would decrease Assets under Administration by 10%.

In the event that such nodelled scenarios were to manifest, the Board has identified a number of potential mitigating actions
that management could take. The primery lever for consideration would be the reduction of discretionary marketing expenditure
and the inplementation of fixed cost savings. The Board considers this approach to be reasonable, especially given that the
Group's financial position has strengthened further over 2023 (in light of it achieving ongoing Adjusted EBITDA profitability in
the fourth quarter of 2023) and given the strength of PensionBee's positioning within the UK conpetitive landscape. The
results of the nodelling have confirmed that the Group would be able to withstand the adverse financial impact of these
aforementioned scenarios occurring together over the four-year assessnent period and that it would continue to be able to
meet its liabilities and capital requirements.

The Group's mediumtermplan underw ent rigorous review and was approved by the Board in Decenber 2023. The stress test
scenarios and associated mitigating actions were reviewed in February 2024 and were subsequently approved in March
2024. The Directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue to operate and
meet its capital requiremments and liabilities as they fall due over the four-year period to Decerrber 2027.

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board on 13 March 2024 and signed on its behalf by:
Romi Savova
Chief Executive Officer

13 March 2024
Statement of Directors' Responsibilities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Conpany law requires the Directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year. Under that law, they are required to prepare
the Group Financial Statemments in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS') as adopted by the UK in conformity
with the requirermments of the Conpanies Act 2006 and have elected to prepare the Parent Conpany Financial Staterments in accordance with
UK Accounting Standards, including FRS 102, the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland. Under conpany
law, the Directors nmust not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and the Conpany and of their profit or loss for that period.

In preparing each of the Group and Parent Conpany Financial Staterrents, the Directors are required to:
e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
e meke judgenents and estimates that are reasonable, relevant, reliable and prudent;
e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been follow ed, subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Staterents; and
e prepare the Financial Statements on a going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and the Corrpany

will continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group's and the
Conpany's operations and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and the Conpany and that
enable themto ensure that its Financial Staterments conrply with the Corrpanies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as
they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of Financial Statements that are free from material misstaterrent, whether due to
fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to themto safeguard the assets of the Group

and the Conrpany and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the Directors are also responsible for preparing a Strategic Report, Drrectors' Report, Drectors'
Rerruneration Report and Corporate Governance Report that conrplies with that law and those regulations. The Directors are responsible for
the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Conpany's website. Legislation in the UK governing

the preparation and dissemination of Financial Statements may differ fromlegislation in other jurisdictions.

We confirmthat to the best of our know ledge:

e The Financial Staterrents, prepared in accordance with the applicable set of accounting standards, give a true and fair view of the
assets, liabilities and financial position of the Group and the Corrpany and profit or loss of the Group and the undertakings included
in the consolidation taken as a whole; and

e The Strategic Report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the issuer
and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a w hole, together with a description of the principal risks and
uncertainties that it faces.

We consider that the Annual Report and Financial Staterments 2023, taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the

information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's and the Conpany's position and performance, business nmodel and strategy.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 13 March 2024 and signed on its behalf by:



Romi Savova
Chief Executive Officer
13 March 2024

Results for the Year

PensionBee Group plc
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 December 2023

2023 2002
Note £000 £000
Revenue 4 23817 17,662
Enployee Benefits Expense
(excluding Share-based Payment) 5 (12.301) (9,554)
Share-based Paynent 5,21 (2,182) (1,898)
Depreciation Bxpense 12,13 (288) (276)
Advertising and Marketing (9,718) (16,554)
Other Expenses 7 (10,017) (11,067)
Listing Costs 25 - (687)
Operating Profit/(Loss) (10,689) (22,374)
Finance Income 8 6 -
Finance Costs 8 (36) (46)
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (10,719) (22,420)
Taxation 10 150 274
Profit/(Loss) for the Year (10,569) (22,146)
Total Comprehensive Profit/(Loss) for the Year wholly
attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent Company (10,569) (22,146)
Earnings per Share (pence per Share)
Basic and Diluted 11 (4.73) (9.97)
The above results w ere derived fromcontinuing operations.
The notes forman integral part of these financial statements.
PensionBee Group plc
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2023
2023 2022
Note £000 £000
Assets
Non-current Assets
Property, Hant and Equipment 12 305 358
Right of Use Assets 13 412 553
Financial Assets (Deposits) 147 -
864 911
Current Assets
Trade and Other Receivables 14 4,347 3,412
Cash and Cash Equivalents 12,214 21,321
16,561 24,733
Total Assets 17,425 25,644
Equity and Liabilities
Equity
Share Capital 15 224 223

Share Premium 16 53,218 53,218



Share-based Payment Reserve
Retained Earnings
Total Equity

Non-current Liabilities
Lease Liability
Provisions

Current Liabilities
Lease Liability
Trade and Other Payables

Total Liabilities

Total Equity and Liabilities

16,21
16

17
18

17
19

The notes forman integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board on 13 March 2024 and signed on its behalf by:

Christoph J. Martin
Chief Financial Officer

PensionBee Group plc

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2023

At 1 January 2022
Rrofit/(Loss) for the Year

Total Conrprehensive Profit/(Loss)
Share-based Payment Transactions

Exercise of Share Options
At 31 December 2022

At 1 January 2023
Rrofit/(Loss) for the Year

Total Conprehensive Rrofit/(Loss)
Share-based Payment Transactions

Exercise of Share Options
At 31 December 2023

Note

15

15

Share
Capital

£000

221

N

223

224

Share
Premum

£000

53,218

53,218

53,218

53,218

The notes forman integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

PensionBee Group plc

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2023

12,397
(50,694)
15,145

292
k2|

106
1,833
1,939

2,280

17,425

Share-based
Payment
Reserve

£000

8,317

1,898
10,215
10,215

2182

12,397

10,215

(40,124)

23,532

397

46

443

154

1,515

1,669

2112

25,644
Retained Total

Earnings

£000 £000
(17,976) 43,780
(22,146) (22,146)
(22,146) (22,146)
- 1,898
v -
(40,124) 23,532
(40,124) 23,532
(10,569) (10,569)
(10,569) (10,569)
- 2,182
(1 -
(50,694) 15,145

2023



Cash Flows used in Operating Activities

Profit/(Loss) for the Year (10,569) (22,146)
Adjustrents to Cash Flow's fromNon-cash ttens

Depreciation 288 276
e : * =
Share-based Payment Transactions 2,182 1,898
j"sxation (150) (274)
Operating Cash Fow's before movenents in Working Capital (8,213) (20,200)

Working Capital Adjustments

I‘m:rease in Trade and Cther Receivables (1,553) (162)
I%;rease in Trade and Other Payables 318 (1,511)
Cash used in Operations (9,448) (21,873)
[1180!‘[9 Taxes Received 623 194
Net Cash Fow used in Operating Activities (8,825) (21,679)

Cash Flows used in Investing Activities
%quisition of Equipment (96) (367)
Net Cash Fow used in Investing Activities (96) (367)

Cash Fows from Financing Activities

B%ﬁg% o: ::n’rtlnmpiil ?fLLease 17 (153) (105)
[RffRasCf Interest of Lease 17 (33) (46)
Net Cash Fows fromFinancing Activities (186) (151)
gltj &Da?glr'ﬁgse) IIncrease in Cash and Cash (9,107) (22,197)
Cash and Cash Euivalents at 1 January 21,321 43,518
Cash and Cash Euivalents at 31 December 12,214 21,321

Changes in the Group's liabilities arising fromfinancing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes have been disclosed in Note
17 to the financial statements.
The notes forman integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

PensionBee Group plc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2023

1. General Information

PensionBee Group plc (‘Corrpany’) is the parent commpany of PensionBee Liited ('Subsidiary") (together the 'Group'). The Conpany
is a public conrpany, w hose shares are traded on the Rrenium Segnrent of the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange ('LSE),
and is incorporated and domiciled in England and Wales.

The address of its registered office is:

209 Blackfriars Road
London
SE1 8N\L

United Kingdom
Principal Activity

The principal activity of the Group is that of a direct-to-consumer online pension provider. The Group seeks to meke its UK
customrers 'Pension Confident' by giving them conrplete control and clarity over their retirement savings. The Group helps its
custorrers to comrbine their pensions into one new online plan where they can contribute, forecast outcomes, invest effectively,
and withdraw their pensions (fromthe age of 55), all fromthe palmof their hand.

2. Accounting Policies
Basis of Preparation

The consolidated financial statemments have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS)
as adopted by the UK in conformity with the requirements of the Conrpanies Act 2006. The financial statements are prepared on the
historical cost basis and on a going concern basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires managenent to exercise its judgerment in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies.

The financial staterments are presented in GBP and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (£'000), except w hen otherwise
indicated. The functional currency of the Conpany is GBP because it is the primary currency in the econorric environment in which
the Conpany operates.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements consolidate the financial statements of the Conpany and its subsidiary undertakings drawn
up to 31 Decenber 2023.



On 24 March 2021, PensionBee Group plc acquired all the issued shares of PensionBee Limited through a share for share
transaction ('Group Reorganisation’). Fromthe acquisition date, FensionBee Lirrited becane a subsidiary of PensionBee Group plc.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Conpany. Control is achieved w here the Corrpany has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits fromits activities. The Conpany reassesses w hether it controls an entity
if facts and circumstances indicate there are changes to one or more elements of control.

Inter-conpany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between the Corrpany and its subsidiary, which are
related parties, are eliminated in full.

Intra-group losses are also eliminated but may indicate an inpairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial
staterents.

Summary of Accounting Policies and Key Accounting Estimates

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Going Concern

The Directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate financial resources to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future and are satisfied that the Group can continue to pay its liabilities as they fall due for a period of at least 12
nmonths from the date of approval of these financial statemments. The Group has good cash reserves and forecasts growth that
should see the financial results inprove in the future years.

The Group has been operationally resilient as proven by consistent operational efficiencies that have been maintained during the
financial year. Stress testing was done by considering severe and unlikely but possible scenarios including a sharp decline in equity
markets, the worsening of conversion and lower transferred-in pension pot sizes, all of which could potentially be caused by the
macroeconorric and geopolitical environment, increased cost of living in the UK and interest rate rises.

The Group has adequate resources to survive macroeconorric downturns and the Directors concluded that the Group has
sufficient financial resources to remain in operational existence. For these reasons, the Directors adopt the going concern basis of
preparation for these financial staterments.

Changesin Accounting Policy

The following amendments are effective for the period beginning 1 January 2023:

Standard Hfective Date, Annual Period
beginning on or after
Amendmrents to IAS 1 - Glassification 1 January 2023
Amendmrents to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2 - Deciding w hich Accounting Policies 1 January 2023
to Disclose
Amendmrents to IAS 8 - Distinction betw een changes in Accounting Policies and 1 January 2023
Accounting Estimates
Amendmrents to IAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets 1 January 2023

All the changes were adopted by the Group. None of the standards, interpretations and amendments, effective for the first time
from1 January 2023 have had a meterial effect on the financial statemments.

New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments not yet Effective

The new standards w hich are not yet effective will not have a material inpact on the financial statements.

Standard Hfective Date, Annual Period

beginning on or after

Amendments to IAS 1 - Glassification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 January 2024

Amendments to IAS 1 - Noncurrent Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024

Amendments to IFRS 16 - Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024

Amendrrents to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 - Supplier Finance Arrangerents 1 January 2024
Revenue Recognition

Revenue represents armounts receivable for services net of VAT. Revenue is derived from the administration of our custorrers'
retirement savings and the provision of one-off ancillary services to customers. The Group operates a service to combine and
transfer customers' old pensions into new online plans, which are subsequently managed by third party money managers. The
Group has applied the 5-step nodel outlined in IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers as is set out below :

Identification of the contract with a customer - During account opening, the customer is made aware of the promises the
Group is meking. Rights and obligations of each party are outlined. The point at which the customer agrees to the terms and
conditions is the point at w hich both the Group and the custorrer have signed or agreed the contract.

Identification of the performance obligations in the contract - The Group maekes one promise to its custorrers, the careful
administration of the customers' retirement savings, including through investrents with its third party money menagers. The Group
performs adnrinistrative tasks during the process of on boarding its customers to its technology platformwhich are necessary for
the fulfilment of administration of the customers' retirement savings. The Group does not consider these administrative tasks to be a
separate performance obligation. As a result, it is considered that the Group has a single performance obligation, which is the
administration of the custorers' retirement savings.

Determination of the transaction price - The money managers invest custorrers' retirement savings in funds ('Group Hans')
that match each customer's selection. The Group charges an annual managerrent fee that is charged daily against the units held by
each custorrer. The annual managenrent fee is based on a fixed percentage (%) which varies for each of the Group Rans; the
fees range from0.50% to 0.95%. There is a further fixed discount of 50% provided to customers who have over £100,000 in their
pension pots. The discount is applied to the incremental amount over and above £100,000.

Allocation of the transaction price - As there is only one performance obligation, the w hole transaction price is allocated to this
performance obligation.



Recogpnition of revenue when a performance obligation is satisfied - The adninistration of customers' retiremment savings
is continuous until the custorrer fully withdraws their pension pot or transfers it to another WK registered pension provider.
Revenue is recognised over time as the custoer simuitaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance as the Group perforns them The performance obligation is satisfied when the customer receives the service.
Revenue is calculated daily as a percentage (basis points) of the value of Assets under Administration ('AUA") as agreed by the
customrer. Payment is due on a daily basis but settled on a nonthly basis.

Consideration Payable to Customers

The Group runs a nurrber of incentive-linked marketing canpaigns. Under these canpaigns, a customer becorres entitled to either a
pension contribution once they make their first live pension transfer. This consideration payable to the customer is not in exchange
for a distinct good or service that the customer transfers to the Group. Therefore, it is accounted for as a reduction to the
transaction price. The full consideration is accounted for as a revenue reduction in the year it is payable because the difference
betw een spreading it over the contract life and recognising it in full in the year it is incurred is not meterial. A materiality assessment
is done annually.

Recurring Revenue

The Group's revenue is recurring in nature as the annual charges are calculated daily as a percentage (basis points) of the value
of AUA and will continue to be earned on an ongoing basis whilst the Group administers those assets. Recurring Revenue is
derived from management fees and is recognised based on daily accruals of customers' pension balances as the performance
obligation, being the provision of pension scheme administration services to customers, is met. These management fees are
charged daily and collected by the Group on a nonthly basis.

Other Revenue

Other Revenue relates to commission earned fromreferring individuals to purchase life insurance products and to a one-off charge
for full draw-dow n within one year of becorring an Invested Custoner. For this revenue stream the performance obligation is the
execution of the requested task. There are fee structures in place which are used to deternine the transaction price. Revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the requested task is executed (when the service is provided to the custorrer).

Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances

In preparing the financial staterrents of the Group entities, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency
(foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each reporting date,
nonetary assets and liabilities that are denorrinated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
nonetary iters carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-nmonetary itenrs that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated. Bxchange differences are recognised in the Statement of Conrprehensive Incomre in the period in w hich they arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Group's
presentation currency at the foreign exchange rate recorded at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated to the presentation currency at the foreign exchange
rate recorded at that date. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are recognised in the Statement of Conprehensive
Incorre. There are no meterial foreign exchange transactions in the financial statements.

Tax

Tax on the loss for the year conrprises research and developrrent credit. There was no current or deferred tax charge for the year
(2022: £nil). Tax is recognised in the Staterment of Conprehensive Income except to the extent that it relates to itens recognised
directly in equity or other conprehensive income, in w hich case it is recognised directly in equity or other conprehensive inconre.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the anmount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to conpute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date in the United Kingdomw here the Group operates and generates taxable income.

Managerrent periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes liabilities w here appropriate.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on tenporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible tenporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible tenporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or
the liability is seftled, based on tax rates (and tax law's) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The Group offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to seftle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities sinultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accunulated depreciation and accunulated inpairment losses. The Group assesses at
each reporting date w hether there are inpairment indicators for tangible fixed assets.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged to the Statemment of Conprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each
part of an itemof tangible fixed assets. The estimated useful lives are as followss:



Asset Class Depreciation Method and Rate

Corputer Equipment three years straight line
Furniture and Fittings four years straight line
Leasehold Inprovements straight line over life of the lease
Right of Use Assets straight line over life of the lease

An itemof property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal (i.e. at the date
the recipient obtains control) or when no future econorric benefits are expected fromits use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying anount of the
asset) is included in the Statemment of Conprehensive Income when the asset is derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives, and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are review ed at each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be inpaired. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated based on future cashflows with a suitable range of discount rates and the
expectations of future performance. An inpairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying anmount
exceeds its recoverable amount. Inpairment loss is recognised in the Staterment of Conprehensive Incone.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents conprise cash on hand and short termhighly liquid deposits with a maturity of less than 3 nonths.
Trade Receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at the transaction price less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition they are measured at anortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses in the case of
trade receivables and other receivables.

Trade Payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable transaction costs. Subsequently they are
measured at anortised cost using the effective interest method. Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are measured at the Directors' best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting date and
are discounted to present value w here the effect is material.

Leases

Initial Recognition and Measurement

The Group initially recognises a lease liability for the obligation to make lease payments and a right-of-use asset for the right to use
the underlying asset for the lease term

The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments to be made over the lease term The lease payments
include fixed payments, purchase options at exercise price (where payment is reasonably certain), expected amount of residual

value guarantees, termination option penalties (where payment is considered reasonably certain) and variable lease payments that
depend on an index or rate.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the anount of the lease liability, adjusted for lease prepayments, lease incentives
received, the group's initial direct costs (e.g. commissions) and an estimate of restoration, removal, and dismantling costs.

Subsequent Measurement

After the commencenent date, the Group measures the lease liability by:

(a) Increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability;
(b) Reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
(c) Re-measuring the carrying anount to reflect any reassessment or lease nodifications or to reflect revised in

substance fixed lease payments or on the occurrence of other specific events.

Interest on the lease liability in each period during the lease termis the anount that produces a constant periodic rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the lease liability. Interest charges are included in finance cost in the Statement of Corrprehensive Incone,
unless the costs are included in the carrying anmount of another asset applying other applicable standards. Variable lease payments
not included in the measurement of the lease liability, are included in operating expenses in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers themarises. Repayment of lease liabilities within financing activities in the Staterment of Cash Flows include
both the principal and interest.

Short Term and Low Value Leases

The Group has made an accounting policy election, by class of underlying asset, not to recognise lease assets and lease liabilities
for leases with a lease termof 12 nonths or less (i.e. short-termleases).



The Group has made an accounting policy election on a lease-by-lease basis, not to recognise lease assets and lease liabilities on
leases for which the underlying asset is worth £5,000 or less (i.e. low value leases).

Lease payments on short termand low value leases are accounted for on a straight-line bases over the termof the lease or other
systematic basis if considered more appropriate. Short termand low value lease payments are included in operating expenses in
the Staterment of Corrprehensive Incorre.

Share Capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Equity instruments are measured at the fair value of the cash or other resources received
or receivable, net of the direct costs of issuing the equity instruments. If payment is deferred and the time value of money is
meterial, the initial measurement is on a present value basis.

Defined Contribution Pension Obligation

The Group operates a defined contribution plan for its enployees, under which the Group pays fixed contributions into the
PensionBee Personal Pension. Once the contributions have been paid the Group has no further payment obligations.

The contributions are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Conprehensive Income when they fall due. Amounts not paid
are shown in creditors as a liability in the Statemment of Financial Position. The assets of the plan are held separately from the
Group.

Share-based Payment

The cost of equity-settled transactions with enployees is measured by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments granted
at the date at which they are granted and is recognised as an expense over the vesting period, w hich ends on the date on which
the relevant enployees becorre fully entitled to the award. Fair value is determined by using the market price of the shares at a
point in time adjacent to the issue of the award. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any vesting conditions,
other than conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Group (market conditions) and non-vesting conditions. No expense is
recognised for awards that do not ultimetely vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a merket or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all
other vesting conditions are satisfied. At each balance sheet date before vesting, the cumulative expense is calculated,
representing the extent to which the vesting period has expired and management's best estimate of the achieverrent or otherwise
of non-market conditions and of the nurrber of equity instrumments that will ultimately vest or in the case of an instrument subject to a
market condition, be treated as vesting as described above. The movenent in cumulative expense since the previous balance sheet
date is recognised in the Statemrent of Conrprehensive Income, with a corresponding entry in equity under the Share-based
Payment Reserve.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are nodified, or a new award is designated as replacing a cancelled or settled award,
the cost based on the original award terns continues to be recognised over the original vesting period. In addition, an expense is
recognised over the remainder of the new vesting period for the incremental fair value of any nodification, based on the difference
between the fair value of the original award and the fair value of the nodified award, both as measured on the date of the
nodification. No reduction is recognised if this difference is negative. Where an equity-settlied award is cancelled, it is treated as if
it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any cost not yet recognised in the Statement of Conprehensive Income for the award
is expensed immediately. Any conpensation paid up to the fair value of the award at the cancellation or settlement date is deducted
from equity (Share-based Payment Reserve), with any excess over fair value expensed in the Statement of Conprehensive
Income.

The Conpany has established a Share-based Payment Reserve but does not transfer any anounts from this reserve on the
exercise or lapse of options. On exercise, shares issued are recognised in share capital at their nomminal value. Share premiumis
recoghised to the extent the exercise price is above the nomrinal value. Where the Conrpany is settling part of the exercise price, a
transfer is made fromretained earnings to share capital.

Research and Development

Research and development expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred, except that development expenditure incurred
on an individual project is capitalised as an intangible asset when the Group can denonstrate the technical feasibility of conpleting
the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, how the asset will generate future economric benefits, the availability
of resources to conplete developnment of the asset and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during developrrent.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and anortised fromthe point at w hich the asset is ready for use.
The Group's research and development costs relate to costs incurred on projects carried out to advance technology used to serve
its customers. No development expenditure has been capitalised during the years 2022 and 2023, on the basis that the specified
criteria for capitalisation has not been met, as costs spent on the development phase of projects cannot be reliably estimated. All
research and development costs are therefore recognised as an expense as incurred.

Impairment of Financial Assets

Measurement of Expected Credit Losses

Expected credit losses ('ECLs') are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest

rate.

For trade and other receivables, the Group applies a sinplified approach in calculating the ECLs. Therefore, the Group recognises a
loss allow ance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

3. Critical Accounting Judgements and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the Directors are required to meke judgenrents, estimates and assunptions
about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assunptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assunptions are review ed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised where the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods w here the revision affects both current and future periods.

The Group does not have any critical accounting judgenents or key estimation uncertainties.

4. Revenue



The analysis of the Group's Revenue for the year fromcontinuing operations is as follows

2023 2022

£000 £000

Recurring Revenue 23,660 17,527
Other Revenue 157 135
23,817 17,662

Recurring Revenue relates to revenue from the annual management fee charged to customers. There are no individual revenues
fromcustomers w hich exceed 10% of the Group's total Revenue for the year.

Segment Information

Operating segments and reporting segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker ('OODM). The Group considers that the role of CODMis performed by the Board of Directors. The CODM
regularly reviews the Group's operating results to assess performance and to allocate resources. All earnings, balance sheet and
cash flow information received and review ed by the Board of Directors is prepared at a conpany level. The CODMconsiders that it
has a single business unit conrprising the provision of direct-to-consumer online pension consolidation and, therefore, recognises
one operating and reporting segment with all revenue, losses before tax and net assets being attributable to this single reportable
business segment.

Further, the Group operates in a single geographical location only, being the United Kingdom

5. Employee Benefits Expense

The aggregate payroll costs (including Directors' remmuneration) were as follows:

2023 2022
£000 £000
Wages and Salaries 10,801 8,373
Social Security Costs 1,200 946
Pension Costs, Defined Contribution Schere 300 235
12,301 9,554
Share-based Payment Expense 2,182 1,898
14,483 11,452
The average nunber of persons enployed by the Group (including Directors) during the year, analysed by category, was as
follows:
2023 2022
No. No.
Executive Management 10 9
Technology and Product 47 38
Marketing 17 15
Customrer Service 92 920
Legal, Conrpliance and Risk 12 11
Administration and Other 24 22
202 185
6. Directors’' Remuneration
The Directors' remmuneration for the year was as follows:
2023 2022
£000 £000
Renuneration 963 853
Group Contributions paid to Defined Contribution Fension Schermes 11 10
974 863

During the year the number of Directors who were receiving benefits and share incentives was as followss:

2023 2022
No. No.
Menbers of Defined Contribution Pension Schemes 5 5
In respect of the highest paid Director:
2023 2022
£000 £000
Renuneration 219 193
Group Contributions to Defined Contribution Pension Schemes 2 2
Exercise of Share Options
2023 2022
£000 £000

Anmount of Gains made on the Exercise of Share Options 164 205



/. Uner expenses

Arrived at after charging:
2023 2022
£000 £000
Auditor's Rerruneration 215 196
Money Manager Costs 3,245 2,825
Other Expenses 6,557 8,047
10,017 11,067

Included in Cther Expenses are technology and platformcosts, professional services fees, irrecoverable VAT and general and
administrative costs.

8. Finance (Income) and Costs

2023 2022
Finance (Incone): £000 £000
Interest (Income) (6) -
(6) -
2023 2022
Finance Costs: £000 £000
Interest Expense on Lease Liabilities 33 43
Interest BExpense on Dilapidations Provision 3 3
Total Finance Costs 36 46
9. Auditor's Remuneration
2023 2022
£000 £000
Audit of the Corrpany's Financial Staterrents 56 4
Audit of the Corrpany's Subsidiary Financial Statemments 112 %
Total Audit Fees 168 138
Audit Related Assurance Services 47 58
Total Audit Related Assurance Fees a7 58

Auditor's remuneration has been shown net of VAT. Audit Related Assurance Fees relate to the half year review of the Group's
financial statements and CASS audit services received by the Subsidiary. No services were provided pursuant to contingent fee
arrangerrents.

10. Tax

Tax charged/(credited) in the Staterent of Conprehensive Income:
2023 2022

£000 £000

Current Taxation

WK Corporation Tax

Deferred Taxation

Arising from Origination and Reversal of Terporary Differences
Arising fromTax Rate Changes

Total Deferred Taxation

Tax Credit in the Staterrent of Conprehensive Income (150)

(150) (274)

(274)

The tax on the loss for the year was conputed at the blended rate of corporation tax of 23.5% (2022: 19%). From1 April 2022, the
standard rate of corporation tax in the UKwas 19%. From1 April 2023, the corporation tax rate of 25% was effective for
conpanies with profits of £250,000 and over. PensionBee will likely utilise its carried forw ard losses w hile making profits exceeding
£250,000 and incurring corporation tax at the rate of 25% therefore the blended rate is deemed appropriate.

The differences are reconciled below:

2023 2022

£000 £000
Profit/(Loss) before Tax (10,719) (22,420)
Corporation Tax at Standard Rate (2,521) (4,260)
Increase fromeffect of different UK Tax Rates on some Earnings - -
Increase fromeffect of expenses not deductible in determining Taxable Frofit 172 288
(Tax Loss)
Capital Allowances Q] (11
Share-based Paynent 318 83
Deferred Tax Expense (Credit) fromunrecognised Tax Loss or Credit 2,032 3,900
Decrease fromeffect of adjustrrents in Research Developrent Tax Credit (150) (274)




Total Tax Oredit (150) (274)

2023 2022

£000 £000

Fixed Assets (36) 43)
Tenporary Difference Trading - -
Total Deferred Tax Liability (36) (43)
Losses available for offsetting against Future Taxable Income 36 43
Total Deferred Tax Asset 36 43

Net Deferred Tax - -

The Group has £81,394,000 of non-expiring carried forward tax losses at 31 Decerber 2023 (2022: £72,755,000) against w hich no
deferred tax asset has been recognised. A deferred tax asset has not been recognised on the basis that there is insufficient
certainty over the recovery of these tax losses in the near future.

11. Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Corrpany by the Weighted Average
Nunber of ordinary Shares Qutstanding during the year.

Diluted Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Conpany adjusted for the effect
that would result fromthe weighted average nunrber of ordinary shares plus the weighted average number of shares that would be
issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential shares under option. At each balance sheet date reported below, the following
potential ordinary shares under option are anti-dilutive and are therefore excluded from the weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of Diluted Earnings per Share.

2023 2022
Nurrber of Potential Ordinary Shares 6,757,781 4,619,220
Profit/(Loss) Attributable to Equity Holders of RFensionBee Group plc (£) (10,569,000) (22,146,000)
Weighted Average Number of Ordinary Shares Qutstanding during the 223,559,764 222,223,650
Year
Basic and Diuted Earnings per Share (pence per Share) (4.73) (9.97)
Basic Earnings per Share was (4.73)p for 2023 (2022: (9.97)p).
12. Property, Plant and Equipment
Fixtures and Leasehold Computer
o ; Total
Fittings Improvements Equipment
£000 £000 £000 £000
Cost
At 1 January 2022 60 126 265 451
Additions 1 251 115 367
Disposals - - (17) (17)
At 31 Decemrber 2022 61 377 363 801
At 1 January 2023 61 377 363 801
Additions 2 Y 52 95
Disposals - - - -
At 31 Decenrber 2023 63 418 415 896
Accumulated Depreciation
At 1 January 2022 51 126 147 324
Charge for the year 7 50 77 134
Biminated on Disposal - - (15) (15)
At 31 Decenrber 2022 58 176 209 443
At 1 January 2023 58 176 209 443
Charge for the year 2 56 0 148
Hininated on Disposal - - - -
At 31 December 2023 60 232 299 591
Carrying Amount
At 31 December 2023 3 186 116 305
At 31 December 2022 3 201 154 358
At 1 January 2022 9 - 118 127

13. Right of Use Asset



£000

Cost

At 1 January 2022 703
Additions 3
Disposals -
At 31 December 2022 706
At 1 January 2023 706
Additions -
Disposals -
At 31 Decerrber 2023 706

Accumulated Depreciation

At 1 January 2022 11
Charge for the year 141
Hininated on Disposal -
At 31 Decerrber 2022 152
At 1 January 2023 152
Charge for the year 141
Hininated on Disposal -
At 31 Decerrber 2023 293
Carrying Amount
At 31 Decerrber 2023 43
At 31 Decenrber 2022 553
At 1 January 2022 692
14. Trade and Other Receivables
2023 2022
£000 £000
Trade Receivables 2,240 1,565
Prepayments 1,901 903
Other Receivables 206 A4
4,347 3.412

Trade and Other Receivables are measured at anortised cost and managerrent assessed that the carrying value is approximately
their fair value due to the short-termmeturities of these balances.

15. Share Capital

Allotted, Called Up and Fully Paid Shares

2023 2022
No. 000 £000 No. 000 £000
At 1 January 222,862 223 221,526 221
Shares issued 1,101 1 1,336 2
At 31 Decerber 223,963 224 222,862 223

During the year, PensionBee Group plc issued ordinary shares, to satisfy the exercise of share options totalling 1,100,706 ordinary
shares (2022: 1,336,148) of £0.001 each. The exercise price for each exercised share option was £0.001 (2022: £0.001).

Each ordinary share carries one vote per share and ranks pari passu with respect to dividends and capital.
16. Reserves
Share Premium

The Share Premiumaccount represents the excess of the issue price over the par value on shares issued, less transaction costs
arising on the issue.

Share-based Payment Reserve

The Share-based Payment Reserve is used to recognise the value of equity-settled share-based payments provided to errployees,
including key management personnel, as part of their remuneration.

Retained Earnings
The balance in the Retained Earnings account represents the distributable reserves of the Group.
17. Leases

In Decenrber 2021, the Group entered into a new property lease with a 5-year lease termending in Decenber 2026 with an option to
terminate the lease after three years. The Group is reasonably certain that this option will not be exercised therefore the lease term
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yields, adjusted for the risk premium for certain company specific factors as well as taking into consideration the interest rate
associated with the revolving credit facility entered into in March 2021 and subsequently cancelled in Septerber 2021. The discount
rate applied was 7%. The lease terms have not been amended since inception.

The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during each year are set out in Note 13. Set out below
are the carrying anounts of lease liabilities and the novenents during the year.

2023 2022
£000 £000
As at 1 January 551 657
Accretion of Interest 33 43
Cash Flow Tining Adjustrment - 2
Payments (188 I 1))
As at 31 Decenber 398 551
Lease Liabilities included in the Statement of Financial Position:
2023 2022
£000 £000
Non-current 292 397
Current 106 154
398 551
The following are the amounts recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income:
2023 2022
£000 £000
Depreciation on Right of Use Asset 141 141
Interest on Lease Liability 03 I
174 184
18. Provisions
2023 2022
£000 £000
Diapidations
At 1 January 46 43
Interest 3 3
At 31 Decenber 49 46
Non-current Liabilities 49 46

The Group is required to restore the leased premises of its offices to their original condition at the end of the lease term The lease
termends on 2 Decenber 2026. A provision has been recognised at the present value of the estimated expenditure required to
renove any leasehold improverrents. These costs have been capitalised as part of the Right of Use Asset and are anortised over
the useful life of the asset.

19. Trade and Other Payables

2023 2022
£000 £000
Trade Payables 269 132
Accrued Expenses 1,496 1,301
Other Payables 68 83
1,833 1,515

Trade and Other Payables are measured at anortised cost and management assessed that the carrying value is approximetely
their fair value due to the short-termmeturities of these balances.

20. Pension and Other Schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost charge for the year represents contributions payable
by the Group to the scheme and amounted to £301,000 (2022: £235,000).

21.  Share-based Payment

PensionBee BMI and Non-BMI Share Option Scheme

Scheme Details and Movements

Under the PensionBee BEM and Non-BEM Share Option Schemme share options were granted to eligible enployees who have
passed their probation period at the Group. The exercise price of all share options is £0.001 per share.

The share options normally vest on the later of the following tranches, 25% of the shares vest on the first anniversary of the
vesting conmencenent date with the remaining 75% of the shares vesting quarterly in equal instalments over the following three
years.

The fair value of the share options granted is estimated on the date of grant by reference to the prevailing share price. Before the
Conrpany was listed in 2021, the fair value was deternined by reference to the price paid by external investors as part of
periodic funding rounds.

The weighted average fair value of share options granted during the year of grant was £nil (2022: £ nil).

During the year ended 31 Decenrber 2021, share options could be exercised upon the occurrence of an exit event, a takeover,
reconstruction, liquidation and sale of the business, to the extent they had vested. In the event that there had been no exit event
before the tenth anniversary of the date of grant, the Directors were able to deternine that an option holder could exercise their
option in the 30 day period before such anniversary.



Following the listing of the Conpany in 2021, share options can be exercised upon satisfying the service condition.
The noverrents in the nunber of share options during the year were as follows:

2023 2022

Number Number

Qutstanding, start of the year 2,444,403 3,911,235
Exercised during the year (910,283) (1,297,359)
Expired during the year (16,350) (169.472)
Qutstanding, end of the year 1,517,770 2,444,404

The weighted average share price on the dates the share options were exercised during the year was £0.74 (2022: £1.05) and
the weighted average remaining contractual life is eight months (2022: one year and six nonths).

Deferred Share Bonus Plan
Scheme Details and Movements

Under the PensionBee Deferred Share Bonus Han, awards ('DSB Awards') are granted to eligible enployees who are or were an
enployee (including an Executive Director) of the Group who have been granted a bonus. DSB Awards are granted in the
subsequent financial year once the annual bonus outturn has been determined. The DSB Awards are granted by way of share
options, with an exercise price of £0.001 per share.

For the two Bxecutive Directors that were in office as of 31 Decenrber 2021, their 2022 granted DSB Awards cliff vest on the
third anniversary of the date of grant. For the rest of the enployees and the subsequent grants, DSB Awards vest in three equal
instalments over a service period of three years fromgrant date. DSB Awards vest upon satisfying the service condition.

The fair value of the DSB Awards is the share price on the grant date. DSB Awards can be exercised to the extent they have
vested.

The weighted average fair value of DSB Awards granted during 2023 was £0.98 (2022: £1.44).

The noverrents in the nunber of DSB Awards during the year were as follows:

2023 2022

Number Number

Qutstanding, start of the year 889,551 -
Granted during the year 626,223 944,508
Exercised during the year (190,423) -
Lapsed during the year (44.589) (54.957)
Qutstanding, end of the year 1,280,762 889,551

The weighted average share price on the dates the share options were exercised during the year was £0.80. No share options
were exercised in 2022. The w eighted average remaining contractual life is one year (2022: one year and five nonths).

Long Term Incentives Plan
Scheme Details and M ovements

Under the PensionBee Long Term Incentives Fan, restricted share plan awards (‘'RSPAwards') are granted to eligible enployees
who are or were enployees (including an Executive Director) of the Group, at mid-level management or higher, who have been
granted a bonus. RSP Awards are granted in the subsequent financial year following a bonus grant. The RSP Awards are
granted by way of share options, with an exercise price of £0.001 per share.

The RSPAwards vest in tranches, a third of the RSPAw ards vest on the third anniversary, a third on the fourth anniversary and
the last third on the fifth anniversary of the grant date.

The fair value of the RSPAwards is the share price on the grant date discounted for the restricted selling period. RSPAwards
can be exercised to the extent they have vested and after a five year holding period.

The weighted average fair value of RSP Awards granted during 2023 was £0.94 (2022: £1.38).

The movenrents in the nunber of RSP Awards during the year were as follows:

2023 2022

Number Number

Qutstanding, start of the year 1,285,266 -
Granted during the year 2,791,756 1,311,681
Bxercised during the year - -
Lapsed during the year (117.773) (26.415)
Qutstanding, end of the year 3,959,249 1,285,266

There were no exercises during the year (2022: nil) and the weighted average remaining contractual life is two years and five
nonths. (2022: three years and three nonths).

Charge/Credit arising from Share-based Payment

The total charge for the year for the Share-based Payment was £2,182,000 (2022: £1,898,000), all of which related to equity-
settled share-based payment transactions.

22.  Financial Risks Review
This note presents information about the Group's exposure to financial risks and the Group's managenent of capital. Financial risk
exposure results fromthe operations of the Subsidiary. The Conpany is not trading and therefore is structured to avoid, in so far
as possible, all fornms of financial risk.

Financial Risk Management Objectives

The Group has identified the financial risks arising fromits activities and has established policies and procedures to manage these
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trade financial instruments, including derivative financial instruments. Assisted by the Audit and Risk Committee, the Board of
Directors has overall responsibility for establishing and overseeing the Group's risk managerent framew ork and risk appetite.

The Group's financial risk management policies are intended to ensure that risks, including emerging risks are identified, evaluated
and subject to ongoing close monitoring and mitigation w here appropriate. The Board of Directors regularly reviews financial risk
managenent policies, procedures and systens to reflect changes in the business, risk horizon, markets and financial instruments
used by the Group. The Group's senior managenent is responsible for the day-to-day management of these risks in accordance
with the Group's risk managenent framew ork.

Market Risk

Merket risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. Market risk corrprises risks including interest rate risk, currency risk and price risk.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group considers interest rate risk to be insignificant due to no debt.

Price Risk

The main source of revenue is based on the value of Assets under Administration ('AUA"), a measure of the total assets for which
a financial institution provides administrative services. The Group has an indirect exposure to price risk on investments held on
behalf of customers. These assets are not on the Group's Statement of Financial Position. The risk of lower revenues is partially
nitigated by asset class diversification. The Group does not hedge its revenue exposure to noverrents in the value of customers
assets arising fromthese risks, and so the interests of the Group are aligned to those of its custorrers.

A 10% change in equity markets would have an approximate 7.5% inpact on revenue. The 10% change in equity markets is a
reasonable approximation of possible change. The key assunption in this assessment is the percentage change of market volatility
over the next 12 nonths fromthe year ended 2023.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay anmounts in full when due. The Group's exposure to credit risk arises
principally fromits cash balances held with banks and trade receivables. The Group's trade receivables are the contractual cash
flow obligations that the payors must meet. The payors are BlackRock, Legal & General, and State Street which are high credit
rated financial institutions. Assets they hold on behalf of the Group are a small percentage of their net assets and on this basis,
credit risk is considered to be low. The Group utilises the sinplified approach to provide for expected credit losses allowing the use
of lifetime loss allowances to be made. In deternining expected credit losses, financial assets have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics, such as number of days past due and the counterparty.

At the end of the reporting period no assets w ere deternined to be inmpaired and there was no balance past due.

In certain cases, the Group will also consider a financial asset to be in default w hen internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full. A financial asset is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Due to the Group's financial assets primarily being trade receivables w hich all have an expected lifetime of less than 12 nonths, the
Group has elected to measure the expected credit losses at 12 months only. The Group's expected credit loss is £nil (2022: £nil).

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the Group's trade receivables:

Days Past Due
Current <30 days 30-60 days 61-90 days >91 days Total
31-Dec-23 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Gross Trade Receivables 2,240 - - - - 2,240
Other Receivables 179 - - - 27 206
Days Past Due
Current <30 days 30-60 days 61-90 days >91 days Total
31-Dec-22 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Gross Trade Receivables 1,565 - - - - 1,565
Other Receivables 540 - - - 404 944

The Group's Trade Receivables are concentrated in the three noney managers

2023 2022

% %

BlackRock 75% 73%
State Street 15% 16%
Legal & General 10% 1%
Total 100% 100%

Other Receivables mainly conrprise of the R&D tax credit due from HVRC and the office rental deposit. The probability of default by
these parties is deermed low. The credit risk on liquid funds financial instruments is limited because the counterparties are banks
with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. The Group's principal Banks are Barclays Bank and HSBC
Innovation Banking. The Group only uses banks with a credit rating of at least BBB+ (Standard & Poor's). The Group's liquid funds
are concentrated in Barclays, which holds 72% of the total balance as at year end (2022: 94%) and HSBC, w hich holds 27% of the
total balance as at year end (2022: 0%).

Liquidity Risk
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cash flow forecasting.

Undiscounted Maturity Analysis
The following table sets out the remaining contractual meturities of the group's financial liabilities by type:

Between 1 and After more than

Within 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
2023 £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and Other Payables 1,833 - - 1,833
Lease Liabilities 129 309 - 438
, Between 1 and After more than
Within 1 year 5 years 5 years Total
2022 £000 £000 £000 £000
Trade and Other Payables 1,515 - - 1,515
Lease Liabilities 186 438 - 624

Capital Risk Management

For the purpose of the Group's capital management, capital includes issued share capital, share premium and all other equity
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Conpany.

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern by ensuring conpliance with regulatory
capital requirements set by the FCA and maximising returns to shareholders through optimal capital deployment. Regulatory capital
is determined in accordance with the requirements prescribed by the FCA. The Group perforns capital assessnments and meintains
a surplus over the regulatory capital requirerrent at all times.

The Group et its regulatory capital requiremment throughout the years 2022 and 2023.

The Group manages its capital structure and mekes adjustrrents considering changes in econorric conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.

Externally Imposed Capital Requirements

The capital adequacy of the business is monitored on a quarterly basis as part of general business planning by the Finance Team
The Group conducts a capital adequacy assessment process, as required by the Financial Conduct Authority ('FCA') to assess
and meintain the appropriate levels.

23. Related Party Transactions

Key Management Compensation 2023 2022
£000 £000
Salaries and Other Short-term Enrployee Benefits 2,034 1,752
Other Long-termBenefits 25 24
Share-based Payment 1,463 1,222
3,522 2,998

Some Key Management Personnel use the Group's services on commrercial termms which are consistent with the standard terms
and condition as available on the website.

Related Party - PensionBee Trustees
The following related party transactions occur betw een the Conpany and PensionBee Trustees Linited:

(i) Payment of the PensionBee Trustees Limited bank fees on a quarterly basis. During the year bank fees ampunted to
£104,000 (2022: £52,000). There was no outstanding balance at year end (2022: £nil).

(ii) Payment of the PensionBee Trustees Linited's Data Protection fee on an annual basis. During the year, payments
anmounted to £35 (2022: £35). There was no outstanding balance at year end (2022: £nil).

Transactions with Directors

During the year ended 31 Decenrber 2023, there were no transactions with Directors. During the year ended 31 Decenrber 2022,
Mark Wood repaid £105,279 to the Subsidiary in respect of a payment to HYRC made by the Group on his behalf in 2021. As at the
year ended 31 Decenber 2023, there was no outstanding balance (2022: £nil).

Some Directors use the Group's services on conmmercial terms which are consistent with the standard terms and condition as
available on the website.

24. Events After the Reporting Period

On 4 March 2024, the Group announced its proposed expansion into the United States of Anrerica ('US'), having taken an inportant
step by entering into an exclusive, non-binding term sheet with a large, US-based global financial institution. Under the proposed
strategic relationship, the US service will be delivered through PensionBee Inc, a yet to be established wholly-ow ned subsidiary of
PensionBee Group plc. RensionBee Inc will be established in Delaw are, with operational headquarters in New York. The financial
effect of the proposed expansion cannot yet be estimated.

25. Alternative Performance Measures

The Group uses an alternative performance measure (‘APM) which is not defined or specified by IFRS. The AFM is Adjusted

A M E_ s _ar



ES11UA, WNICN IS TNE I0SS TOr e Year DETore taxauon, TiNance CoSTS, aepreciation, snare-nased Compensaton and Iisting Costs.
The Directors use this APMand a conbination of IFRS measures w hen reviewing the performance and position of the Group and
believe that these measures provide useful information with respect to the Group's business and operations. The Directors
consider that this APMillustrates the underlying performance of the business by excluding itemms considered by management not to
be reflective of the underlying trading operations of the Group.

The APMused by the Group is defined below and reconciled to the related IFRS financial measures:
Adjusted BBITDA

Adjusted BBITDA represents loss for the year before taxation, finance costs, depreciation, share-based conpensation and listing
costs.

2023 2022

£000 £000
Operating Profit/(Loss) (10,689) (22,374)
Depreciation Expense 288 276
Share-based Payment (1) 2,182 1,898
Listing Costs (2) - 687
Adjusted EBITDA (8,219) (19,513)

(1) Relates to total annual charge in relation to Share-based Payment expense as detailed in Note 21.

(2) 2022 Listing Costs relate to expenses incurred in relation to the preparation for the transfer fromthe Hgh Growth Segment to
the Premium Segrrent of the Main Market of the London Stock Exchange.

In the prior year, the Group utilised Adjusted EBBITDAMas an APMw hich represented the loss for the year before taxation, finance
costs, depreciation, advertising and marketing, share based conpensation and listing costs. In the year ended 31 Decenber 2023,
the Group successfully achieved Adjusted BBITDAM profitability therefore, Adjusted BBITDAMis no longer presented as an APM
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